## VERNON PARISH ASSESSOR LEESVILLE, LOUISIANA

## ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT DECEMBER 31, 2020

# VERNON PARISH ASSESSOR Leesville, Louisiana

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

|  | <u>Statement</u> | Page                       |
|--|------------------|----------------------------|
| Independent Auditor's Report   |                  | 1-3                        |
| Basic Financial Statements   |                  |                            |
| Statement of Net Position  | А                | 5                          |
| Statement of Activities  | В                | 6                          |
| Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds   | С                | 7                          |
| Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet<br>to Statement of Net Position   | D                | 8                          |
| Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in<br>Fund Balances – Governmental Funds   | E                | 9                          |
| Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures<br>and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to<br>the Statement of Activities  | F                | 10                         |
| Notes to the Financial Statements  |                  | 12-26                      |
|  | Schedule         |                            |
| Required Supplemental Information<br>General Fund – Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures<br>and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget and Actual<br>Schedule of the Assessor's Proportionate Share of the<br>Net Pension Liability<br>Schedule of the Assessor's Pension Contribution<br>Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios | 1<br>2<br>3<br>4 | 28<br>29-30<br>31-32<br>33 |
| Other Supplemental Schedules<br>Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments<br>to Agency Head  | 5                | 35                         |
| Other Reports<br>Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings<br>Schedule of Current Year Audit Findings and Management's Response  | 6<br>7           | 37<br>38                   |
| Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on<br>Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial<br>Statements Performed in Accordance with <i>Government Auditing Standards</i>  | -                | 39-40                      |

Certified Public Accountants

1620 North Pine Street DeRidder, LA 70634 Tel: (337) 462-3211 Fax: (337) 462-0640 John A. Windham, CPA Charles M. Reed, Jr., CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Michael Bealer, CLA Vernon Parish Assessor Leesville, Louisiana

## **Report on the Financial Statements**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and the major fund of the Vernon Parish Assessor, a component unit of the Vernon Parish Police Jury, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Assessor's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

#### Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

#### Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Assessor's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

The Honorable Michael Bealer, CLA Vernon Parish Assessor Leesville, Louisiana Page 2

## Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and the major fund of the Vernon Parish Assessor as of December 31, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

## **Other Matters**

## Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, the schedule of the Assessor's proportionate share of the net pension liability, the schedule of the Assessor's pension contribution, and the schedule of changes in net OPEB liability and related ratios on pages 28 through 33 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

#### Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Vernon Parish Assessor's basic financial statements. The schedule of compensation, benefits and other payments to agency head is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedule of compensation, benefits and other payments to agency head is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of compensation, benefits and other payments to agency head is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The Honorable Michael Bealer, CLA Vernon Parish Assessor Leesville, Louisiana Page 3

## Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated May 17, 2021, on our consideration of the Vernon Parish Assessor's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering Vernon Parish Assessor's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

formal. Windham, CPA

DeRidder, Louisiana May 17, 2021

# BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

# Statement of Net Position December 31, 2020

| ASSETS   Cash and cash equivalents<br>Investments \$ 466,778<br>118,606   Receivables:<br>Ad valorem taxes 861,219   Capital assets being depreciated - net<br>Total assets 3.981<br>3.1,450,584   DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES \$ 6,463   Prepaid expenditures \$ 3.37,950   Other post-employment benefits 719,469   Total assets and deferred outflows of resources \$ 1.063,882   LIABILITIES \$ 2,514,466   Payroll benefits payable \$ 1,800   Salaries payable \$ 1,800   Salaries payable \$ 1,800   Salaries payable \$ 1,900,637   Net OPEB liability 1,900,637   Total liabilities \$ 2,073,740   DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES \$ 238,552   Pensions \$ 2,387,291   DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES \$ 2,387,291   DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES \$ 2,387,291   NET POSITION \$ 2,387,291   NET POSITION \$ 2,387,291   Net investment in capital assets \$ 3,981   Unrestriced \$ 2,314,466   Total liabilities, add deferred inflows of resources \$ 3,981   <  |   |    | Governmental<br>Activities |  |
|---|---|----|----------------------------|--|
| Investments 118,606   Receivables: 861,219   Ad valorem taxes 861,219   Capital assets being depreciated - net 3,981   Total assets \$ 1,450,584   DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 8   Prepaid expenditures \$ 6,463   Pensions 337,950   Other post-employment benefits 7119,469   Total deferred outflows of resources \$ 1,063,882   ULABILITIES \$ 1,063,882   Accounts payable \$ 1,063,882   Payroll benefits payable \$ 1,010   Retirement payable \$ 1,000,637   Net opesion liability 1,000,637   Net opesion liability 1,900,637   DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES \$ 2,387,521   Pensions \$ 2,387,291   DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES \$ 313,551   Pensions \$ 2,387,291   Net prost-employment benefits \$ 2,387,291   Net nevestment in capital assets \$ 2,387,291   Net nevestment in capital assets \$ 3,981   Unrestricted \$ 122,194   Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources \$ 123,194  | ASSETS  |    |                            |  |
| Investments 118,606   Receivables: 861,219   Ad valorem taxes 861,219   Capital assets being depreciated - net 3,981   Total assets \$ 1,450,584   DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES \$   Prepaid expenditures \$ 6,463   Pensions 7719,469   Total deferred outflows of resources \$ 1,063,882   Total assets and deferred outflows of resources \$ 2,514,466   LIABILITIES \$ 1,800   Accounts payable \$ 1,800   Payroll benefits payable \$ 1,800   Payroll benefits payable \$ 1,000,637   Net oreposite liability 1,010   Retirement payable \$ 2,073,740   DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES \$ 2,387,291   Pensions \$ 2,387,291   DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES \$ 313,551   Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources \$ 2,387,291   NET POSITION \$ 2,387,291   Net investment in capital assets \$ 3,981   Unrestricted \$ 123,194   Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources \$ 3,981   LIABILITIES <t< th=""><th>Cash and cash equivalents</th><th>\$</th><th>466.778</th></t<>  | Cash and cash equivalents                           | \$ | 466.778                    |  |
| Receivables:<br>Ad valorem taxes $861,219$ Capital assets being depreciated - net<br>Total assets $$1,450,584$ DEFERED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCESPrepaid expenditures<br>Prensions\$6,643<br>337,950Other post-employment benefits $719,469$<br>310,63,882Total deferred outflows of resources\$1,063,882Total assets and deferred outflows of resources\$2,514,466LIABILITIES\$2,514,466Accounts payable<br>Salaries payable\$18,604<br>1,010Payroll benefits payable\$18,604<br>1,010Payroll benefits payable\$18,604<br>1,010Net operation liability145,782<br>1,900,637<br>3,700DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES\$2,2073,740Pensions\$2,2073,740DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES\$238,552<br>74,999<br>\$313,551Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources\$2,338,251<br>\$313,551Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources\$2,338,252<br>\$313,551Net pOSITION\$12,314<br>\$313,551Net investment in capital assets\$3,981<br>\$123,194Unrestricted\$123,194<br>\$123,194Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources\$3,981<br> |   | +  |                            |  |
| Capital assets being depreciated - net 3,981   Total assets \$ 1,450,584   DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES \$ 6,463   Prepaid expenditures \$ 6,463   Pensions 719,469   Total deferred outflows of resources \$ 1,063,882   Total assets and deferred outflows of resources \$ 2,514,466   LIABILITIES \$ 1,060   Accounts payable \$ 1,800   Salaries payable \$ 1,800   Salaries payable \$ 1,800   Retirement payable \$ 1,010   Retirement payable \$ 1,900,637   Net pension liability \$ 1,900,637   Total liabilities \$ 2,073,740   DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES \$ 2,38,552   Pensions \$ 2,38,551   Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources \$ 2,387,291   NET POSITION \$ 2,38,7291   NET POSITION \$ 2,38,7291   Net investment in capital assets \$ 3,981   Unrestricted \$ 1,23,194   Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources \$ 1,23,194   Solution \$ 122,175   Total liabilities, deferred inflows of  | Receivables:  |    |                            |  |
| Total assets \$ 1,450,584   DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES   Prepaid expenditures \$ 6,463   Pensions 719,469   Total assets and deferred outflows of resources \$ 1,063,882   Total assets and deferred outflows of resources \$ 2,514,466   LIABILITIES \$ 1,800   Accounts payable \$ 1,800   Salaries payable \$ 1,800   Salaries payable \$ 1,800   Payroll benefits payable \$ 1,900,637   Total liability \$ 2,073,740   DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES \$ 238,551   Other post-employment benefits \$ 2,387,291   DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES \$ 2,387,291   NET POSITION \$ 2,387,291   NET POSITION \$ 3,981   Unrestrieted \$ 2,387,291   Net investment in capital assets \$ 3,981   Unrestrieted \$ 122,175   Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources \$ 1,23,194  | Ad valorem taxes                                    |    | 861,219                    |  |
| DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES   Prepaid expenditures \$ 6,463   Pensions 719,469   Other post-employment benefits 719,469   Total deferred outflows of resources \$ 1,063,882   Total assets and deferred outflows of resources \$ 2,514,466   LIABILITIES \$ 2,514,466   Accounts payable \$ 1,060   Salaries payable \$ 1,060   Salaries payable \$ 1,010   Retirement payable \$ 1,010   Net pension liability 145,782   DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES \$ 2,073,740   DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES \$ 2,38,552   Other post-employment benefits \$ 2,38,552   Other post-employment benefits \$ 313,551   Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources \$ 2,38,7291   NET POSITION \$ 2,387,291   Net investment in capital assets \$ 3,981   Unrestricted \$ 123,194   Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources \$ 123,194   Salaries payable \$ 123,194   |   |    |                            |  |
| Prepaid expenditures\$6,463Pensions337,950Other post-employment benefits719,469Total deferred outflows of resources\$LIABILITIESAccounts payable\$Accounts payable\$Salaries payable18,604Payroll benefits payable\$Net position liability1,900,637Total liabilities\$2.073,740\$DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES\$Pensions\$Other post-employment benefits\$Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources\$Softer post-employment benefits\$Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources\$NET POSITION\$Net newsition\$Net investment in capital assets\$Unrestricted\$Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources\$Softion\$2.127,175Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources  | Total assets  | \$ | 1,450,584                  |  |
| Pensions337,950<br>719,469Other post-employment benefits $31,950$<br>719,469Total deferred outflows of resources $$1,063,882$ Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $$2,514,466$ LIABILITIES $$1,800$ Salaries payable $$1,800$ Payroll benefits payable $$1,800$ Retirement payable $$5,907$ Net pension liability $$145,782$ Net OPEB liability $$1,900,637$ Total liabilities $$2,073,740$ DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES $$238,552$ Pensions $$$238,552$ Other post-employment benefits $$74,999$ Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources $$$2,387,291$ NET POSITION $$$1,23,194$ Net investment in capital assets $$$3,981$<br>$$123,194$ Unrestricted $$$127,175$ Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources   | DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES                      |    |                            |  |
| Pensions 337,950   Other post-employment benefits 719,469   Total deferred outflows of resources \$ 1,063,882   Total assets and deferred outflows of resources \$ 2,514,466   LIABILITIES \$ 1,800   Salaries payable \$ 1,800   Payroll benefits payable \$ 1,800   Retirement payable \$ 1,003,882   Net pension liability 145,782   Net OPEB liability 145,782   Total liabilities \$ 2,073,740   DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES \$ 238,552   Pensions \$ 313,551   Total deferred inflows of resources \$ 2,387,291   NET POSITION \$ 3,981   Net investment in capital assets \$ 3,981   Unrestricted \$ 1,23,194   Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources \$ 1,27,175   Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources \$ 1,27,175  | Prepaid expenditures                                | \$ | 6,463                      |  |
| Total deferred outflows of resources\$1,063,882Total assets and deferred outflows of resources\$2,514,466LIABILITIES\$1,800Accounts payable\$1,800Payroll benefits payable18,604Payroll benefits payable1,010Retirement payable\$,907Net OPEB liability145,782Total liabilities\$2,073,740\$DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES\$Pensions\$2,073,740\$DEFERRED inflows of resources\$2,38,551\$Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources\$NET POSITION\$Net investment in capital assets\$1,23,194\$Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources  |   |    | 337,950                    |  |
| Total assets and deferred outflows of resources \$ 2,514,466   LIABILITIES \$ 1,800   Salaries payable \$ 1,800   Salaries payable \$ 1,800   Retirement payable \$ 1,800   Retirement payable \$ 5,907   Net pension liability 145,782 \$   Net OPEB liability 1,900,637 \$   Total liabilities \$ 2,073,740   DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES \$ 238,552   Other post-employment benefits \$ 74,999   Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources \$ 2,387,291   NET POSITION \$ 2,387,291   Net investment in capital assets \$ 3,981   Unrestricted \$ 3,981   Unrestricted \$ 3,981   Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources \$ 3,981   Unrestricted \$ 123,194   Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources \$ 127,175  | Other post-employment benefits                      |    | 719,469                    |  |
| LIABILITIES   Accounts payable \$ 1,800   Salaries payable 18,604   Payroll benefits payable 1,010   Retirement payable 5,907   Net pension liability 145,782   Net OPEB liability 1,900,637   Total liabilities \$ 2,073,740   DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES \$ 2,073,740   Pensions \$ 2,073,740   DEFERRED inflows of resources \$ 313,551   Total deferred inflows of resources \$ 313,551   Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources \$ 2,387,291   NET POSITION \$ 1,23,194   Net investment in capital assets \$ 3,981   Unrestrieted 123,194   Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources \$ 127,175   Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources \$ 127,175   | Total deferred outflows of resources                | \$ | 1,063,882                  |  |
| Accounts payable\$1,800Salaries payable18,604Payroll benefits payable1,010Retirement payable5,907Net pension liability145,782Net OPEB liability1,900,637Total liabilities\$DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCESPensions\$Other post-employment benefits74,999Total deferred inflows of resources\$2,387,291NET POSITIONNet investment in capital assets\$Unrestricted123,194Total net position\$Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources   | Total assets and deferred outflows of resources     | \$ | 2,514,466                  |  |
| Salaries payable18,604Payroll benefits payable1,010Retirement payable5,907Net pension liability145,782Net OPEB liability1,900,637Total liabilities\$ 2,073,740DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCESPensionsOther post-employment benefitsTotal deferred inflows of resources\$ 238,552Other post-employment benefits74,999Total deferred inflows of resources\$ 313,551Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources\$ 2,387,291NET POSITIONNet investment in capital assets\$ 3,981Unrestricted\$ 23,194Total net position\$ 127,175Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources\$ 127,175   | LIABILITIES   |    |                            |  |
| Payroll benefits payable1,010Retirement payable5,907Net pension liability145,782Net OPEB liability1,900,637Total liabilities\$ 2,073,740DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCESPensionsOther post-employment benefitsTotal deferred inflows of resources\$ 238,552Other post-employment benefits74,999Total deferred inflows of resources\$ 313,551Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources\$ 2,387,291NET POSITIONNet investment in capital assets\$ 3,981Unrestricted123,194Total net position\$ 127,175Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources\$ 127,175   | Accounts payable                                    | \$ | 1,800                      |  |
| Retirement payable $5,907$ Net pension liability $145,782$ Net OPEB liability $1,900,637$ Total liabilities $$2,073,740$ DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCESPensions\$238,552Other post-employment benefits $74,999$ Total deferred inflows of resources\$313,551Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources\$2,387,291NET POSITIONNet investment in capital assets\$3,981Unrestricted $123,194$ Total net position\$127,175Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources\$127,175   |   |    | 18,604                     |  |
| Net pension liability145,782Net OPEB liability1,900,637Total liabilities\$ 2,073,740DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES\$ 2,073,740Pensions\$ 238,552Other post-employment benefits74,999Total deferred inflows of resources\$ 313,551Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources\$ 2,387,291NET POSITION\$ 3,981Unrestricted123,194Total net position\$ 127,175Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources\$ 127,175  | Payroll benefits payable                            |    | 1,010                      |  |
| Net OPEB liability1,900,637Total liabilities\$ 2,073,740DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCESPensions\$ 238,552Other post-employment benefits74,999Total deferred inflows of resources\$ 313,551Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources\$ 2,387,291NET POSITION\$ 3,981Unrestricted123,194Total net position\$ 127,175Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources\$ 127,175  | Retirement payable                                  |    | 5,907                      |  |
| Total liabilities\$2,073,740DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCESPensions\$238,552Other post-employment benefits74,999Total deferred inflows of resources\$313,551Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources\$2,387,291NET POSITION\$3,981Unrestricted123,194Total net position\$127,175Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources\$   | · ·   |    | 145,782                    |  |
| DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES   Pensions \$ 238,552   Other post-employment benefits 74,999   Total deferred inflows of resources \$ 313,551   Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources \$ 2,387,291   NET POSITION \$ 3,981   Unrestricted 123,194   Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources \$ 127,175  | •   |    | 1,900,637                  |  |
| Pensions\$238,552Other post-employment benefits74,999Total deferred inflows of resources\$313,551Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources\$2,387,291NET POSITIONNet investment in capital assets\$Unrestricted123,194Total net position\$Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources  | Total liabilities                                   | \$ | 2,073,740                  |  |
| Other post-employment benefits<br>Total deferred inflows of resources74,999<br>\$ 313,551Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources\$ 2,387,291NET POSITION\$ 2,387,291Net investment in capital assets\$ 3,981<br>123,194<br>\$ 122,175Total net position\$ 127,175   | DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES                       |    |                            |  |
| Other post-employment benefits74,999Total deferred inflows of resources\$ 313,551Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources\$ 2,387,291NET POSITION\$ 3,981Unrestricted123,194Total net position\$ 127,175Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources\$ 127,175   | Pensions  | \$ | 238,552                    |  |
| Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources \$ 2,387,291   NET POSITION   Net investment in capital assets \$ 3,981   Unrestricted 123,194 123,194   Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources \$ 127,175  | Other post-employment benefits                      |    |                            |  |
| NET POSITION   Net investment in capital assets   Unrestricted   Total net position   Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources  | Total deferred inflows of resources                 | \$ | 313,551                    |  |
| Net investment in capital assets\$ 3,981Unrestricted123,194Total net position\$ 127,175   | Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources | \$ | 2,387,291                  |  |
| Unrestricted123,194Total net position\$ 127,175Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources2  | NET POSITION  |    |                            |  |
| Unrestricted123,194Total net position\$ 127,175Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources2  | Net investment in capital assets                    | \$ | 3 981                      |  |
| Total net position\$ 127,175Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources  |   | Ψ  |                            |  |
|   |   | \$ |                            |  |
|   | Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources    |    |                            |  |
|   |   | \$ | 2,514,466                  |  |

# Statement of Activities For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

|                                      |                  |                       | Program | n Revenues   | Reven  | (Expenses)<br>ues and Changes<br>Net Position |
|--------------------------------------|------------------|-----------------------|---------|--------------|--------|---|
| Program Activities                   |                  | Expenses              | Charges | for Services | Govern | mental Activities                             |
| Governmental activities:<br>Taxation | \$               | 1,013,006             | \$      | 505          | \$     | (1,012,501)                                   |
|                                      | General<br>Taxes | revenues:             |         |              |        |   |
|                                      |                  | valorem taxes         |         |              |        | 810,500                                       |
|                                      | State            | revenue sharing       |         |              |        | 37,089  |
|                                      |                  | ment earnings         |         |              |        | 3,036   |
|                                      | Sale o           | of assets             |         |              |        | (36,896)                                      |
|                                      | Noner            | nployer pension rev   | venue   |              |        | 139,291                                       |
|                                      |                  | Total general reven   | ues     |              |        | 953,020                                       |
|                                      |                  | Change in net posit   | ion     |              |        | (59,481)                                      |
|                                      | Net post         | ition at beginning of | fyear   |              |        | 186,656                                       |
|                                      | Net post         | ition at end of year  |         |              | \$     | 127,175                                       |

# Balance Sheet Governmental Funds December 31, 2020

|   | M   | ajor Fund  |
|---|-----|------------|
|   | Ger | neral Fund |
| ASSETS  |     |            |
| Cash and cash equivalents                       | \$  | 466,778    |
| Investments                                     |     | 118,606    |
| Receivables:                                    |     |            |
| Ad valorem                                      |     | 861,219    |
| Total assets                                    | \$  | 1,446,603  |
| DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES                  |     |            |
| Prepaid expenditures                            | \$  | 6,463      |
| Total assets and deferred outflows of resources | \$  | 1,453,066  |
| LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES                   |     |            |
| Liabilities:                                    |     |            |
| Accounts payable                                | \$  | 1,800      |
| Salaries payable                                |     | 18,604     |
| Payroll benefits payable                        |     | 1,010      |
| Retirement payable                              |     | 5,907      |
| Total liabilities                               | \$  | 27,321     |
| Fund Balances:                                  |     |            |
| Nonspendable                                    |     |            |
| Not in spendable form                           | \$  | 6,463      |
| Unassigned                                      |     | 1,419,282  |
| Total fund balances                             | \$  | 1,425,745  |
| Total liabilities and fund balances             | \$  | 1,453,066  |

# Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to Statement of Net Position December 31, 2020

| Total fund balance - total governmental funds  |                                | \$<br>1,425,745 |
|--|--------------------------------|-----------------|
| Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:   |                                |                 |
| Capital assets used in governmental activities are not<br>financial resources and therefore are not reported in<br>the governmental funds balance sheets.  |                                | 3,981           |
| Pension-related changes in net pension liability that<br>are only reported in the Statement of Net Position<br>as deferred outflows.   |                                | 337,950         |
| Pension-related changes in net pension liability that<br>are only reported in the Statement of Net Position<br>as deferred inflows.  |                                | (238,552)       |
| Other post-employment benefit related changes in other<br>post-employment benefit liability that are only reported<br>in the Statement of Net Position as deferred outflows.   |                                | 719,469         |
| Other post-employment benefit related changes in other<br>post-employment benefit liability that are only reported<br>in the Statement of Net Position as deferred inflows.  |                                | (74,999)        |
| Other postemployment benefits (OPEB) obligations<br>and net pension liability are reported as long-term<br>liabilities in the government wide financial<br>statements but are not reported in the governmental<br>fund financial statements. |                                |                 |
| Net pension liability<br>Net OPEB liability  | \$<br>(145,782)<br>(1,900,637) | <br>(2,046,419) |
| Net position of governmental activities  |                                | \$<br>127,175   |

# Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Governmental Funds For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

|                                    | Major Fund   |
|------------------------------------|--------------|
|                                    | General Fund |
| Revenues                           |              |
| Taxes:                             |              |
| Ad valorem                         | \$ 810,500   |
| Intergovernmental:                 |              |
| State revenue sharing              | 37,089       |
| Charges for services               | 505          |
| Investment income                  | 3,036        |
| Total revenues                     | \$ 851,130   |
| Expenditures                       |              |
| General government - taxation      |              |
| Salaries and related benefits      | \$ 746,129   |
| Conferences and travel             | 4,606        |
| Office supplies                    | 13,767       |
| Contracted services                | 54,692       |
| Debt service:                      |              |
| Principal                          | 23,816       |
| Interest                           | 726          |
| Total expenditures                 | \$ 843,736   |
| Excess (deficiency) of revenues    |              |
| over expenditures                  | \$ 7,394     |
| Other financing sources:           |              |
| Sale of assets                     | \$ 15,265    |
| Net change in fund balance         | \$ 22,659    |
| Fund balances at beginning of year | 1,403,086    |
| Fund balances at end of year       | \$ 1,425,745 |

| Vernon Parish Assessor<br>Leesville, Louisiana  | Statement F    |
|---|----------------|
| Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures<br>and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental<br>Funds to the Statement of Activities<br>For the Year Ended December 31, 2020   |                |
| Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds  | \$<br>22,659   |
| Amounts reported for governmental activities in the<br>Statement of Activities are different because:   |                |
| Governmental funds only report the disposal of fixed assets to the extent proceeds<br>are received from the sale. In the Statement of Activities, a gain or loss is reported<br>for each disposal.  | (52,161)       |
| Pension expense is based on employer contributions in the governmental funds<br>but is an actuarially calculated expense on the Statement of Activities.  | 75,780         |
| Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the government-<br>wide statement of activities and changes in net position, but that<br>does not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore,<br>depreciation expense is not reported as an expenditure in governmental funds. | (1,227)        |
| Governmental funds do not report net change in other postemployment benefits (OPEB) obligations. However this obligation does appear in the Statement of Net Position.  | (128,348)      |
| Repayment of capital lease principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,<br>but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net<br>Position. This is the amount of capital lease repayments.   | <br>23,816     |
| Change in net position of governmental activities   | \$<br>(59,481) |

# NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2020

# INTRODUCTION

As provided by Article VII, Section 24 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974, the Assessor is elected by the voters of the parish and serves a four-year term. The Assessor assesses all real and movable property in the parish, subject to ad valorem taxation. The Assessor is authorized to appoint as many deputies as may be necessary for the efficient operation of the office and provides assistance to the taxpayers of the parish. The deputies are authorized to perform all functions of the office, but the Assessor is officially and peculiarly responsible for the actions of the deputies.

The Assessor's office is located in the Vernon Parish Police Jury's building in Leesville, Louisiana. The Assessor employs seven employees, including six deputies. In accordance with Louisiana law, the Assessor bases real property, movable property, and public service property assessments on conditions existing on January 1 of the tax year. The Assessor completes an assessment listing by May 1 of the tax year and submits the list to the parish governing authority and the Louisiana Tax Commission as prescribed by law. Once the assessment listing is approved, the Assessor submits the assessment roll to the parish tax collector who is responsible for collecting and distributing taxes to the various taxing bodies.

At December 31, 2020, there are 25,752 real property, movable property, and public service property assessments totaling \$86,057,367, \$37,158,970, and \$25,525,740 respectively. This represents an increase of 162 assessments and an increase totaling \$4,019,860 over the prior year, caused primarily by an increase in new housing along with an increase in the oil and gas production in the parish during the year.

# 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

# A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying basic financial statements of the Vernon Parish Assessor have been prepared in conformity with governmental accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The accompanying basic financial statements have been prepared in conformity with GASB Statement 34, *Basic Financial Statements-and Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments,* issued in June 1999.

## **B. REPORTING ENTITY**

The Assessor is an independently elected official; however, the Assessor is fiscally dependent on the Vernon Parish Police Jury. The police jury maintains and operates the parish building in which the Assessor's office is located and provides funds for equipment and furniture of the Assessor's office. In addition, the police jury's general purpose financial statements would be incomplete or misleading without inclusion of the assessor. For these reasons, the assessor was determined to be a component unit of the Vernon Parish Police Jury, the financial reporting entity.

The accompanying financial statements present information only on the funds maintained by the Assessor and do not present information on the police jury, the general government services provided by that governmental unit, or the other governmental units that comprise the financial reporting entity.

## C. FUND ACCOUNTING

The Assessor uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid management by segregating transactions related to certain tax assessment functions and activities. A fund is defined as a separate fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.

#### **Governmental Funds**

Governmental funds account for all or most of the Assessor's general activities. These funds focus on the sources, uses, and balances of current financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for which they may be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference between a governmental fund's assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance. In general, fund balance represents the accumulated expendable resources which may be used to finance future period programs or operations of the Assessor. The following is the Assessor's governmental fund:

**General Fund** - the primary operating fund of the Assessor and it accounts for all financial resources, except for those in another fund. The General Fund is available for any purpose provided it is expended or transferred in accordance with state and federal laws and according to the Assessor's policy.

# D. MEASUREMENT FOCUS/BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

#### Fund Financial Statements (FFS)

The amounts reflected in the General Fund of Statements C and E are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This approach is then reconciled to a government-wide view of the Assessor's operations.

The amounts reflected in the General Fund of Statements C and E use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of the transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The Assessor considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after the fiscal year end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for interest and principal payments on general long-term debt which is recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. The governmental funds use the following practices in recording revenues and expenditures:

## Revenues

Ad valorem taxes and the related state revenue sharing are recorded in the year the taxes are due and payable. Ad valorem taxes are assessed on a calendar year basis, attach as an enforceable lien, and become due and payable on the date the tax rolls are filed with the recorder of mortgages. Louisiana Revised Statute 47:1993 requires that the tax roll be filed on or before November 15 of each year. Ad valorem taxes become delinquent if not paid by December 31. The taxes are normally collected in December of the current year and January and February of the ensuing year.

Fees for preparing tax rolls are recorded in the year prepared. Interest income on time deposits is recorded when the time deposits have matured. Interest income on demand deposits is recorded monthly when the interest is earned and credited to the account.

Based on the above criteria, ad valorem taxes, state revenue sharing, and fees for preparing tax rolls have been treated as susceptible to accrual.

## Expenditures

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund liability is incurred.

#### **Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS)**

The Statement of Net Position (Statement A) and the Statement of Activities (Statement B) display information about the Assessor as a whole. These statements include all the financial activities of the assessor. Information contained in these columns reflect the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange or exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange occurs (regardless of when cash is received or disbursed). Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from nonexchange transactions are recognized in accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 33, *Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions*.

**Program Revenues** - Program revenues included in the column labeled Statement of Activities (Statement B) are derived directly from users as a fee for services; program revenues reduce the cost of the function to be financed from the Assessor's general revenues.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Assessor's policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

The Assessor has not established a policy for use of the unrestricted fund balance, therefore it considers committed fund balances to be used first, then assigned fund balances to be used next and finally the unassigned fund balance will be used.

## E. BUDGETS

The Assessor uses the following budget practices:

- The Assessor prepares a proposed operating budget no later than fifteen days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. For the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2020 and ending December 31, 2020 the budget was prepared on December 9, 2019 and the public hearing was called for. After the public hearing was held, the budget was adopted by the assessor.
- 2. Budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.
- 3. The budget for the general fund is adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the assessor.
- 4. Amendments to the budget are approved by the assessor. The original budget is amended as necessary and all amendments are reflected in the budget comparisons in the financial statements.
- 5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General Fund.

# F. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, and time deposits. Cash equivalents include amounts in time deposits and those investments with original maturities of 90 days or less. Under state law, the assessor may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, or time deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law or any other state of the United States, or under the laws of the United States. The Assessor has not adopted a deposit or investment policy that limits the government's allowable deposits or investments and addresses specific types of risk to which the government is exposed.

# G. PREPAID ITEMS

Prepayments for expenditures applicable to future accounting periods are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. The following are the prepaid items at year end:

| Prepaid insurance   | \$<br>1,512 |
|---------------------|-------------|
| Prepaid maintenance | 4,175       |
| Prepaid dues        | <br>776     |
| Total               | \$<br>6,463 |
|                     |             |

# H. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated cost if historical cost is not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The assessor maintains a threshold level of \$5,000 or more for capitalizing capital assets.

Capital assets are recorded in the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities. Since surplus assets are sold for an immaterial amount when declared as no longer needed for public purposes, no salvage value is taken into consideration for depreciation purposes. All capital assets, other than land, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

| Description             | Estimated<br>Lives |
|-------------------------|--------------------|
| Improvements            | 5-20 years         |
| Machinery and equipment | 3-20 years         |
| Furniture and fixtures  | 5-10 years         |
| Vehicles                | 5 years            |

## I. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Vacation Leave Policy

| 0-6 months          | 0       |
|---------------------|---------|
| 6 months to 1 year  | 1 week  |
| 1 year to 5 years   | 2 weeks |
| 5 years to 15 years | 3 weeks |
| 15 years or more    | 4 weeks |

## Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

No more than 2 (two) employees at a time will schedule time off Only 1 (one) field person at a time shall schedule time off

> Sick Leave..... 10 days per year Allowed Time......3 days per year

## Earned Time

Employees receive credit for extra time worked to be used for extra time off with the approval of the Assessor.

Earned time is defined as: Time worked over and beyond normal working hours (7:30 AM - 4:00 PM) or on weekends. There must be a need for earned time, and before time is worked <u>it must be</u> approved by the Assessor. To use earned time it must be approved by the Assessor.

No compensation is to be paid for earned time.

Vacation time, sick leave, allowed time or earned time may not be carried form one year to another.

Only unused vacation time will be paid upon termination of employment and only for the current year, no vacation time will carry over to the following year. This would be an immaterial amount and no liability has been established.

In the event that an employee would use all of the above leave and would require additional leave then that employee may be placed on leave without pay.

The Assessor reserves the right to modify all of the above when the circumstance warrants.

purposes within the general fund.

## J. FUND BALANCES

| Nonspendable | The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that<br>cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b)<br>legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The "not in<br>spendable form" criterion includes items that are not expected to be<br>converted to cash, for example, inventories and prepaid amounts. As<br>for the Vernon Parish Assessor the nonspendable fund balance<br>consists of prepaid amounts of maintenance, insurance and dues. |
|--------------|--|
| Unassigned   | Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund.<br>This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other<br>funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific  |

## K. EXTRAORDINARY AND SPECIAL ITEMS

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence. Special items are transactions or events within the control of the Assessor, which are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence.

## L. ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures, and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

## M. PENSIONS

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Louisiana Assessors' Retirement Fund and Subsidiary (the Fund) and additions to/deductions from the Fund's fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Fund. The financial statements were prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Member and employer contributions are recognized when due, pursuant to formal commitments and statutory requirements.

Benefits and refunds of employee contributions are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the statutes governing the Fund. Expenses are recognized when the liability is incurred, regardless of when payment is made. Investments are reported at fair value on a trade date basis. The fiduciary net position is reflected in the measurement of the Assessor's proportionate share of the plans net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense.

## N. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

The Statement of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred outflows and (or) deferred inflows of financial resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until the applicable period. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources until that time.

## 2. LEVIED TAXES

The Assessor levies taxes on real and business personal property located within the boundaries of the assessment district. Property taxes are levied by the Assessor on property values assessed by the Vernon Parish Assessor and approved by the State of Louisiana Tax Commission.

The Vernon Parish Sheriff and Ex-Officio Tax Collector bills and collects property taxes for the Assessor. Collections are remitted to the Assessor monthly. The Assessor recognizes property tax revenues when levied.

| Property Tax Calendar    |                   |  |
|--------------------------|-------------------|--|
| Assessment date          | January 1, 2020   |  |
| Levy date                | June 30, 2020     |  |
| Tax bills mailed         | October 15, 2020  |  |
| Total taxes are due      | December 31, 2020 |  |
| Penalties & interest due | January 31, 2021  |  |
| Lien date                | January 31, 2021  |  |
| Tax sale                 | May 31, 2021      |  |

For the year ended December 31, 2020, taxes of 5.79 mills were levied on property with an assessed valuation totaling \$148,742,077, and were dedicated as follows:

| Taxes due for:     | Authorized<br>Millage | Levied<br>Millage | Expiration<br>Date |
|--------------------|-----------------------|-------------------|--------------------|
| Taxes due 101.     | wiinage               | wiinage           | Daic               |
|                    |                       |                   | Renewed            |
| General Operations | 5.79                  | 5.79              | Annually           |

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Property taxes are collected and remitted by the local sheriff. If taxes are not paid, a sheriff's sale is held and the property is sold to satisfy the taxes due on the property. Due to this, the majority, if not all, property taxes are collected, therefore no allowance account for uncollectibles has been established.

## 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

At December 31, 2020, the Assessor has cash and cash equivalents (book balances) totaling \$466,778 as follows:

| \$<br>69,028  |
|---------------|
| 397,725       |
| <br>25        |
| \$<br>466,778 |
| \$            |

The cash and cash equivalents of the Vernon Parish Assessor are subject to the following risk:

*Custodial Credit Risk:* Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the government will not be able to recover its deposits. Under state law, the deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal or exceed the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. Louisiana Revised Statue 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified by the Assessor that the fiscal agent bank has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. Further, Louisiana Revised Statue 39:1224 states that securities held by a third party shall be deemed to be held in the Assessor's name.

At December 31, 2020, the Assessor has \$466,772 in deposits (collected bank balances). These deposits are secured from risk by \$319,048 of federal deposit insurance and \$147,724 of pledged securities held by an unaffiliated bank of the pledgor bank. These deposited pledged securities are deemed by law to be under the control and possession and in the name of the Assessor and are therefore properly collateralized.

## 4. INVESTMENTS

The Assessor also had invested \$118,606 in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP), a local government investment pool. In accordance with GASB Codification Section I50.126, the investment in LAMP as of December 31, 2020 is not categorized in the three risk categories provided by GASB Codification Section I50.125 because the investment is in the pool of funds and therefore not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.

LAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana. Only local government entities having contracted to participate in LAMP have an investment interest in its pool of assets. The primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe environment for the placement of public funds in short-term, high quality investments. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other obligations which local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in accordance with LSA - R.S. 33:2955.

GASB Statement No. 40 Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure, requires disclosure of credit risk, custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk for all public entity investments.

LAMP is a 2a7-like investment pool. The following facts are relevant for 2a7-like investment pools:

- Credit risk: LAMP is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's.
- Custodial credit risk: LAMP participants' investments in the pool are evidenced by shares of the pool. Investments in pools should be disclosed, but not categorized because they are not

#### Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book-entry form. The public entity's investment is with the pool, not the securities that make up the pool; therefore, no disclosure is required.

- Concentration of credit risk: Pooled investments are excluded from the 5 percent disclosure requirement.
- Interest rate risk: LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants immediate access to their account balances. LAMP prepares its own interest rate risk disclosure using the weighted average maturity (WAM) method. The WAM of LAMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 days, and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days or 762 days for U.S. Government floating/variable rate investments. The WAM for LAMP's total investments is 86 days as of December 31, 2020.
- Foreign currency risk: Not applicable to 2a7-like pools.

The investments in LAMP are stated at fair value based on quoted market rates. The fair value is determined on a weekly basis by LAMP and the value of the position in the external investment pool is the same as the net asset value of the pool shares.

LAMP, Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and the board of directors. LAMP is not registered with the SEC as an investment company.

## 5. **RECEIVABLES**

The receivables of \$861,219 at December 31, 2020 are as follows:

| Class of Receivable |               |
|---------------------|---------------|
| Taxes:              |               |
| Ad valorem          | \$<br>861,219 |

# 6. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, is as follows:

| Governmental Activities  |          | Balance<br>anuary 1,<br>2020 | А        | dditions            | E        | Deletions | -        | Balance<br>cember 31,<br>2020 |
|--|----------|------------------------------|----------|---------------------|----------|-----------|----------|-------------------------------|
| Vehicle  | \$       | 81,056                       | \$       | -                   | \$       | 81,056    | \$       | -                             |
| Machinery and equipment  |          | 110,360                      |          | -                   |          | -         |          | 110,360                       |
| Total  | \$       | 191,416                      | \$       | -                   | \$       | 81,056    | \$       | 110,360                       |
| Less accumulated depreciation<br>Vehicle<br>Machinery and equipment<br>Total | \$<br>\$ | 28,895<br>105,152<br>134,047 | \$<br>\$ | -<br>1,227<br>1,227 | \$<br>\$ | 28,895    | \$<br>\$ | 106,379<br>106,379            |
| Capital assets, net  | \$       | 57,369                       | \$       | (1,227)             | \$       | (52,161)  | \$       | 3,981                         |

#### Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Depreciation expense of \$1,227 for the year ended December 31, 2020 was charged to the following governmental functions:

Public safety \$ 1,227

## 7. PENSION PLAN

*Plan Description*. Substantially all employees of the Vernon Parish Assessor's office are members of the Louisiana Assessors' Retirement System (System), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by a separate board of trustees.

All full-time employees who are under the age of 60 at the time of original employment and are not drawing retirement benefits from any other public retirement system in Louisiana are required to participate in the System. Employees who retire at or after age 55 with at least 12 years of credited service or at or after age 50 with at least 30 years of credited service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 3.34% of their final-average salary for each year of credited service, not to exceed 100% of their final-average salary. Final-average salary is the employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce the highest average. Employees who terminate with at least 12 years of service and do not withdraw their employee contributions may retire at or after age 55 and receive the benefit accrued to their date of termination. The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established or amended by state statute.

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the Louisiana Assessors' Retirement System, Post Office Box 1786, Shreveport, Louisiana 71166-1786, or by calling (318) 425-4446.

*Funding Policy*. Plan members are required by state statute to contribute 8.00% of their annual covered salary and the Vernon Parish Assessor is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 8.00% of annual covered payroll. Contributions to the System also include one-fourth of 1.00% (1% for Orleans Parish) of the taxes shown to be collectible by the tax rolls of each parish, plus revenue sharing funds appropriated by the legislature. The contribution requirements of plan members and the Vernon Parish Assessor is established and may be amended by state statute. As provided by R.S. 11:103, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The Vernon Parish Assessor's contributions to the System for the years ending December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018, were \$35,296, \$34,692, and \$34,687, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

# Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2020, the Assessor reported a liability of \$145,782 for its proportionate share of net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of September 30, 2020 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Assessor's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Assessor's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating assessors, actuarially determined. At September 30, 2020 the Assessor's proportion was .954223%, which was a decrease of .017904% from its proportion measured as of September 30, 2019.

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Assessor recognized pension revenue of \$40,484. At December 31, 2020, the Assessor recognized deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from the following:

#### Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

|   | Deferred Outflows<br>of Resources |         | Deferred Inflows<br>of Resources |         |
|---|-----------------------------------|---------|----------------------------------|---------|
| Differences between expected and actual   |                                   |         |                                  |         |
| experience  | \$                                | 4,666   | \$                               | 116,475 |
| Changes of assumptions  |                                   | 323,647 |                                  | -       |
| Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments                |                                   | -       |                                  | 114,637 |
| Changes in proportion and differences between<br>Assessor contributions and proportionate share |                                   |         |                                  |         |
| of contributions  |                                   | 777     |                                  | 7,440   |
| District's contributions subsequent to the  |                                   |         |                                  |         |
| measurement date  |                                   | 8,860   |                                  | -       |
| Total   | \$                                | 337,950 | \$                               | 238,552 |

The \$8,860 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Assessor's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

| Year ended December 31: |              |
|-------------------------|--------------|
| 2021                    | \$<br>7,372  |
| 2022                    | 34,915       |
| 2023                    | 34,519       |
| 2024                    | (5,231)      |
| 2025                    | 18,963       |
| Total                   | \$<br>90,538 |

#### Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The current year actuarial assumptions utilized for this report are based on the assumptions used in the September 30, 2020 actuarial funding valuation, which (with exception of mortality) were based on results of an actuarial experience study for the period October 1, 2009 – September 30, 2014. All assumptions selected were determined to be reasonable and represent expectations of future experience for the Fund.

Additional information on the actuarial methods and assumptions used as of September 30, 2020 actuarial valuation follows:

| Actuarial Cost Method                        | Entry age normal  |
|--|---|
| Investment Rate of Return<br>(discount rate) | 5.75%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation.   |
| Inflation Rate                               | 2.10%   |
| Salary Increases                             | 5.25%   |
| Annuitant and Beneficiary<br>Mortality       | Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for General<br>Healthy Retirees multiplied by 120% with full generational<br>projection using the appropriate MP-2019 improvement scale. |
| Active Members Mortality                     | Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for General Employees multiplied by 120% with full generational projection using the appropriate MP-2019 improvement scale.              |

#### Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

| Disabled Lives Mortality | Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for General |
|--------------------------|--|
|                          | Disabled Retirees multiplied by 120% with full generational  |
|                          | projection using the appropriate MP-2019 improvement scale.  |

#### Discount Rate

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation of 2.50% and an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. The resulting long-term expected arithmetic nominal return was 8.37% as of September 30, 2020.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan's target asset allocation as of September 30, 2020, are summarized in the following table:

|                      | Long-Term Expected  |
|----------------------|---------------------|
| Asset Class          | Real Rate of Return |
|                      | 2020                |
| Domestic equity      | 7.50%               |
| International equity | 8.50%               |
| Domestic bonds       | 2.50%               |
| International bonds  | 3.50%               |
| Real estate          | 4.50%               |
| Alternative assets   | 5.87%               |

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from the participating employers will be made at actuarially determined contribution rates, which are calculated in accordance with relevant statutes and approved by the Board of Trustees and the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee. Based on these assumptions, the Fund's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

The effects of certain other changes in the net pension liability are required to be included in pension expense over the current and future periods. The effects on the total pension liability of (1) changes of economic and demographic assumptions or of other inputs and (2) differences between expected and actual experience are required to be included in pension expense in a systematic and rational manner over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with benefits through the pension plan (active employees and inactive employees), determined as of the beginning of the measurement period. The effect on net pension liability of differences between the projected earnings on pension plan investments and actual experience with regard to those earnings is required to be included in a systematic and rational manner over a closed period of five years, beginning with the current period. The Expected Remaining Service Lives (ERSL) for 2020 is 6 years.

#### Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the Assessor calculated using the discount rate of 5.75%, as well as what the Fund's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower 4.75%, or one percentage point higher 6.75% than the current discount rate (assuming all other assumptions remain unchanged):

#### Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

|                               | Changes in Discount Rate: |            |              |  |  |
|-------------------------------|---------------------------|------------|--------------|--|--|
|                               | Current                   |            |              |  |  |
|                               | 1.00%                     | Discount   | 1.00%        |  |  |
|                               | Decrease Rate Increase    |            |              |  |  |
|                               | 4.75% 5.75% 6.75%         |            |              |  |  |
| Net Pension Liability (Asset) | \$ 661,761                | \$ 145,782 | \$ (292,879) |  |  |

## 8. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

General Information about the OPEB Plan

*Plan description* – The Vernon Parish Assessor (the Assessor) provides certain continuing health care and life insurance benefits for its retired employees. The Vernon Parish Assessor's OPEB Plan (the OPEB Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the Assessor. The authority to establish and/or amend the obligation of the employer, employees and retirees rests with the Assessor. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Section P52 *Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions – Reporting For Benefits Not Provided Through Trusts That Meet Specified Criteria – Defined Benefit.* 

*Benefits Provided* – Medical, dental, and life benefits are provided through comprehensive plans and are made available to employees upon actual retirement. Employees are covered by the Louisiana Assessors' Retirement Fund, whose retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: Attainment of age 55 and 12 years of service; or, any age and 30 years of service; employees hired on and after October 1, 2013 are not able to retire or enter DROP until age 60 with 12 years of service; or, age 55 with 30 years of service. The retiree must also have 20 years of service for the retiree to receive employer contributions.

Life insurance coverage is provided to retirees and 100% of the blended rate (active and retired) is paid by the employer. The amount of insurance coverage while active is continued after retirement, but insurance coverage amounts are reduced to 50% of the original amount at age 70 or at retirement.

*Employees covered by benefit terms* – At December 31, 2020, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

4

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments Active employees

#### Total OPEB Liability

The Assessor's total OPEB liability of \$1,900,637 was measured as of December 31, 2020 and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions and other inputs – The total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

| Inflation<br>Salary increases | 2.00%<br>3.00%, including inflation   |
|-------------------------------|---|
| Discount Rate                 | 2.74% annually (Beginning of Year to Determine ADC)   |
| Healthcare cost trend rates   | 2.12% annually (As of End of Year Measurement Date) 5.50% annually until year 2030, then 4.5% |
| Mortality                     | SOA RP-2014 Table   |

The discount rate was based on the average of the Bond Buyers' 20 Year General Obligation municipal bond index as of December 31, 2020, the end of the applicable measurement period.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2020 valuation were based on the results of ongoing evaluations of the assumptions from January 1, 2009 to December 31, 2020.

#### Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

| Balance at December 31, 2019                       | \$<br>1,220,212 |
|--|-----------------|
| Changes for the year:                              |                 |
| Service cost                                       | 56,622          |
| Interest   | 34,210          |
| Differences between expected and actual experience | 395,872         |
| Changes in assumptions                             | 228,953         |
| Benefit payments and net transfers                 | <br>(35,232)    |
| Net changes  | \$<br>680,425   |
| Balance at December 31, 2020                       | \$<br>1,900,637 |

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate – The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Assessor, as well as what the Assessor's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower 1.12% or 1-percentage-point higher 3.12% than the current discount rate:

|                      |     | Current     |    |             |       |              |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|----------------------|-----|-------------|----|-------------|-------|--------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
|                      | 1.0 | 0% Decrease | Di | scount Rate | 1.0   | 00% Increase |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|                      |     | 1.12%       |    | 2.12%       | 3.12% |              |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| Total OPEB liability | \$  | 2,278,291   | \$ | 1,900,637   | \$    | 1,603,765    |  |  |  |  |  |  |

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates – The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Assessor, as well as what the Assessor's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower 4.50% or 1-percentage-point higher 6.50% than the current healthcare trend rates:

|                      | 1.00 | )% Decrease | Cu | rrent Trend | 1.00% Increase |           |  |  |  |  |
|----------------------|------|-------------|----|-------------|----------------|-----------|--|--|--|--|
|                      |      | 4.50%       |    | 5.50%       | 6.50%          |           |  |  |  |  |
| Total OPEB liability | \$   | 1,618,409   | \$ | 1,900,637   | \$             | 2,266,361 |  |  |  |  |

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Assessor recognized OPEB expense of \$163,580. At December 31, 2020, the Assessor reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

|  | Defer | red Outflows | Defei | red Inflows |  |
|--|-------|--------------|-------|-------------|--|
|  | of    | Resources    | of I  | Resources   |  |
| Differences between expected and actual experience | \$    | 378,425      | \$    | 3,795       |  |
| Changes in assumptions                             |       | 341,044      |       | 71,204      |  |
| Total  | \$    | 719,469      | \$    | 74,999      |  |

# Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

| Year ended June 30: |              |
|---------------------|--------------|
| 2021                | \$<br>72,748 |
| 2022                | 72,748       |
| 2023                | 72,748       |
| 2024                | 72,748       |
| 2025                | 72,748       |
| Thereafter          | 280,730      |

## 9. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES

The payables of \$27,321 at December 31, 2020, are as follows:

|                             | Gen | eral Fund |
|-----------------------------|-----|-----------|
| Accounts                    | \$  | 1,800     |
| Salaries payable            |     | 18,604    |
| Payroll benefits payable    |     | 1,010     |
| Retirement benefits payable |     | 5,907     |
| Total                       | \$  | 27,321    |

## **10. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN**

The Vernon Parish Assessor offers its employees participation in the State of Louisiana Public Employees Deferred Compensation Plan adopted by the Louisiana Deferred Compensation Commission and established in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available to all Assessor employees, permits the employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or proof of hardship.

The assets of the Plan are held in trust as described in the IRC section 457(g) for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. The custodian thereof for the exclusive benefit of the participants holds the custodial account for the beneficiaries of this plan, and the assets may not be diverted to any other use. The administrators are agents of the employer for the purposes of providing direction to the custodian of the custodial account from time to time for the investment of the funds held in the account, and all other matters.

Complete disclosures relating to the plan are included in the separately issued audit report for the Plan, available from the Louisiana Legislative Auditor, Post Office Box 94397, Baton Rouge, Louisiana, 70804-9397.

## 11. EXPENDITURES OF THE ASSESSOR'S OFFICE PAID BY THE POLICE JURY

The Assessor's office is located in the Vernon Parish Police Jury owned building located at 301 E. Courthouse Street, Leesville, LA 71446. The cost of operating that building is paid by the Vernon Parish Police Jury.

# Notes to Financial Statements (Concluded)

# 12. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS

|                           |                          |          |    |                        |     | Other                   |    |                         |              |  |
|---------------------------|--------------------------|----------|----|------------------------|-----|-------------------------|----|-------------------------|--------------|--|
|                           | Capital Lease<br>Payable |          | -  | oital Lease<br>Payable | Pos | temployment<br>Benefits |    | et Pension<br>Liability | Total        |  |
| Long-term obligations     |                          | ayable   |    | ayable                 |     | Dellems                 |    |                         | Total        |  |
| at beginning of year      | \$                       | 10,222   | \$ | 13,595                 | \$  | 1,220,212               | \$ | 256,430                 | \$ 1,500,459 |  |
| Additions and adjustments |                          | -        |    | -                      |     | 715,657                 |    | (75,352)                | 640,305      |  |
| Principal, other payments |                          |          |    |                        |     |                         |    |                         |              |  |
| and adjustments           |                          | (10,222) |    | (13,595)               |     | (35,232)                | -  | (35,296)                | (94,345)     |  |
| Long-term obligations     |                          |          |    |                        |     |                         |    |                         |              |  |
| at end of year            | \$                       | -        | \$ | -                      | \$  | 1,900,637               | \$ | 145,782                 | \$ 2,046,419 |  |

The following is a summary of the current (due in one year or less) and the long-term (due in more than one year) portions of long-term obligations as of December 31, 2020:

|                   |                           |       |    |       |     | Other       |    |           |                 |
|-------------------|---------------------------|-------|----|-------|-----|-------------|----|-----------|-----------------|
|                   | Capital Lease Capital Lea |       |    |       | Pos | temployment | Ne | t Pension |                 |
|                   | Pa                        | yable | Pa | yable |     | Benefits    |    | Liability | <br>Total       |
| Current portion   | \$                        | -     | \$ | -     | \$  | -           | \$ | -         | \$<br>-         |
| Long-term portion |                           | -     |    | -     |     | 1,900,637   |    | 145,782   | 2,046,419       |
| Total             | \$                        | -     | \$ | -     | \$  | 1,900,637   | \$ | 145,782   | \$<br>2,046,419 |

# REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

# General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget and Actual For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

|   | Budgeted Amounts |           |    |           |          |             | Budget to Actual differences over |          |  |  |
|---|------------------|-----------|----|-----------|----------|-------------|-----------------------------------|----------|--|--|
|   |                  | Original  |    | Final     | Ac       | tual Amount | (                                 | (under)  |  |  |
| Revenues<br>Taxes:<br>Ad valorem              | \$               | 810,000   | \$ | 810,000   | \$       | 810,500     | \$                                | 500      |  |  |
| Intergovernmental:<br>State revenue sharing   |                  | 55,634    |    | 37,000    |          | 37,089      |                                   | 89       |  |  |
| Charges for services                          |                  | 5,000     |    | 500       |          | 505         |                                   | 5        |  |  |
| Investment income                             |                  | 1,700     |    | 3,000     |          | 3,036       |                                   | 36       |  |  |
| Total revenues                                | \$               | 872,334   | \$ | 850,500   | \$       | 851,130     | \$                                | 630      |  |  |
| Expenditures<br>General government - taxation |                  |           |    |           |          |             |                                   |          |  |  |
| Salaries and related benefits                 | \$               | 750,000   | \$ | 750,000   | \$       | 746,129     | \$                                | 3,871    |  |  |
| Conferences and travel                        |                  | 10,000    |    | 4,500     |          | 4,606       |                                   | (106)    |  |  |
| Office supplies                               |                  | 46,000    |    | 47,500    |          | 13,767      |                                   | 33,733   |  |  |
| Contracted services<br>Debt service:          |                  | 34,000    |    | 20,200    |          | 54,692      |                                   | (34,492) |  |  |
| Principal                                     |                  | 10,900    |    | 24,000    |          | 23,816      |                                   | 184      |  |  |
| Interest                                      |                  |           |    | 1,000     |          | 726         |                                   | 274      |  |  |
| Total expenditures                            | \$               | 850,900   | \$ | 847,200   | \$       | 843,736     | \$                                | 3,464    |  |  |
| Excess (deficiency) of revenues               |                  |           |    |           |          |             |                                   |          |  |  |
| over expenditures                             | \$               | 21,434    | \$ | 3,300     | \$       | 7,394       | \$                                | 4,094    |  |  |
| Other financing sources:                      | <b>•</b>         |           | ¢  | 15.050    | <i>•</i> | 15065       | ¢                                 | 1.5      |  |  |
| Sale of assets                                | \$               | -         | \$ | 15,250    | \$       | 15,265      | \$                                | 15       |  |  |
| Net change in fund balance                    | \$               | 21,434    | \$ | 18,550    | \$       | 22,659      | \$                                | 4,109    |  |  |
| Fund balances at beginning of year            |                  | 1,405,000 |    | 1,403,086 |          | 1,403,086   |                                   | _        |  |  |
| Fund balances at end of year                  | \$               | 1,426,434 | \$ | 1,421,636 | \$       | 1,425,745   | \$                                | 4,109    |  |  |

# Schedule of the Assessor's Share of the Net Pension Liability For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

| Louisiana Assessors' Retirement Fund and Subsidiary  | December 31,<br>2015 |           | December 31,<br>2016 |           | December 31,<br>2017 |          | December 31,<br>2018 |          | December 31,<br>2019 |           |
|--|----------------------|-----------|----------------------|-----------|----------------------|----------|----------------------|----------|----------------------|-----------|
| Assessor's proportion of the net pension liability (asset)   |                      | 1.032315% |                      | 1.047256% |                      | .990410% |                      | .987444% |                      | .972127%  |
| Assessor's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)  | \$                   | 540,234   | \$                   | 369,545   | \$                   | 173,788  | \$                   | 191,963  | \$                   | 256,430   |
| Assessor's covered-employee payroll  | \$                   | 446,990   | \$                   | 449,537   | \$                   | 434,805  | \$                   | 433,586  | \$                   | 433,653   |
| Assessor's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of it's covered-employee payroll |                      | 121.86%   |                      | 82.20%    |                      | 39.96%   |                      | 44.27%   |                      | 59.13%    |
| Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability   | 85.57%               |           | 90.68%               |           | 95.61%               |          | 95.46%               |          |                      | 94.12%    |
|  |                      |           |                      |           |                      |          |                      |          | (C                   | ontinued) |

# Schedule of the Assessor's Share of the Net Pension Liability For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

| Louisiana Assessors' Retirement Fund and Subsidiary   | December 31,<br>2020 |          |  |  |
|---|----------------------|----------|--|--|
| Assessor's proportion of the net pension liability (asset)  |                      | .954223% |  |  |
| Assessor's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)   | \$                   | 145,782  |  |  |
| Assessor's covered-employee payroll   | \$                   | 441,200  |  |  |
| Assessor's proportionate share of the net pension liability<br>(asset) as a percentage of it's covered-employee payroll |                      | 33.04%   |  |  |
| Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability  |                      | 96.79%   |  |  |

(Concluded)

| Louisiana Assessors' Retirement Fund and Subsidiary                  | December 31,<br>2015 |         | December 31,<br>2016 |         | December 31,<br>2017 |         | December 31,<br>2018 |         | December 31,<br>2019 |         |
|--|----------------------|---------|----------------------|---------|----------------------|---------|----------------------|---------|----------------------|---------|
| Contractually required contribution                                  | \$                   | 60,344  | \$                   | 56,883  | \$                   | 41,306  | \$                   | 34,687  | \$                   | 34,692  |
| Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution |                      | 60,344  |                      | 56,883  |                      | 41,306  |                      | 34,687  |                      | 34,692  |
| Contribution deficiency (excess)                                     | \$                   | -       | \$                   | -       | \$                   |         | \$                   | _       | \$                   |         |
| Assessor's covered-employee payroll                                  | \$                   | 446,990 | \$                   | 449,537 | \$                   | 434,805 | \$                   | 433,586 | \$                   | 433,653 |
| Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll            |                      | 13.50%  |                      | 12.65%  |                      | 9.50%   |                      | 8.00%   |                      | 8.00%   |

(Continued)

# Schedule of the Assessor's Pension Contribution For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

| Louisiana Assessors' Retirement Fund and Subsidiary                  | December 31,<br>2020 |         |  |  |
|--|----------------------|---------|--|--|
| Contractually required contribution                                  | \$                   | 35,296  |  |  |
| Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution |                      | 35,296  |  |  |
| Contribution deficiency (excess)                                     | \$                   | _       |  |  |
| Assessor's covered-employee payroll                                  | \$                   | 441,200 |  |  |
| Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll            |                      | 8.00%   |  |  |

(Concluded)

# Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

|  | December 31,<br>2018 |                                 | December 31, 2019 |                               | December 31,<br>2020 |                                |
|--|----------------------|---------------------------------|-------------------|-------------------------------|----------------------|--------------------------------|
| Total OPEB Liability<br>Service cost<br>Interest   | \$                   | 44,230<br>36,491                | \$                | 36,971<br>41,019              | \$                   | 56,622<br>34,210               |
| Changes of benefit terms<br>Differences between expected and actual experience<br>Changes of assumptions<br>Benefit payments |                      | (5,217)<br>(97,906)<br>(34,288) |                   | 27,674<br>168,733<br>(36,174) |                      | 395,872<br>228,953<br>(35,232) |
| Net change in total OPEB liability<br>Total OPEB liability - beginning   | \$<br>\$             | (56,690)<br>1,038,679           | \$<br>\$          | 238,223<br>981,989            | \$<br>\$             | 680,425<br>1,220,212           |
| Total OPEB liability - ending  | \$                   | 981,989                         | \$                | 1,220,212                     | \$                   | 1,900,637                      |
| Covered-employee payroll   | \$                   | 435,405                         | \$                | 433,653                       | \$                   | 441,200                        |
| Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll   |                      | 225.53%                         |                   | 281.38%                       |                      | 430.79%                        |
| Notes to Schedule:   |                      |                                 |                   |                               |                      |                                |
| Benefit Change:  |                      | None                            |                   | None                          |                      | None                           |
| Changes of Assumptions:<br>Discount Rate:<br>Mortality:<br>Trend:  |                      | 4.10%<br>RP-2000<br>5.5%        |                   | 2.74%<br>RP-2000<br>5.5%      |                      | 2.12%<br>RP-2014<br>Variable   |

# OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES

# Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Head For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

# Agency Head Name - Michael Bealer

| Purpose                        | Amount        |  |
|--------------------------------|---------------|--|
| Salary                         | \$<br>158,745 |  |
| Benefits - insurance           | 25,288        |  |
| Benefits - retirement          | 25,399        |  |
| Deferred compensation          | 9,550         |  |
| Benefits - other               | -             |  |
| Car allowance                  | -             |  |
| Vehicle provided by government | Yes           |  |
| Cell phone                     | 1,250         |  |
| Dues                           | 220           |  |
| Vehicle rental                 | -             |  |
| Per diem                       | 2,319         |  |
| Reimbursements                 | -             |  |
| Travel                         | -             |  |
| Registration fees              | 1,030         |  |
| Conference travel              | 987           |  |
| Housing                        | -             |  |
| Unvouchered expenses           | -             |  |
| Special meals                  | -             |  |
| Other                          | -             |  |
|                                |               |  |

OTHER REPORTS

# Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

# Finding – Financial Statement Audit

Audit Finding No. 2019-1

# IRS Federal Payroll Tax Deposits not timely paid

| Condition:                 | Federal form 941 payroll tax deposits for the third quarter were not timely paid to the IRS.  |
|----------------------------|---|
| Criteria:                  | Federal law requires that payroll tax deposits are to be paid by specific dates depending<br>on the date payroll is paid.   |
| Cause and Condition:       | The individual that made the payroll tax deposits on the computer did make them on the due date, but somehow he inadvertently changed the payment date to the next month. This was not recognized until several deposits had been paid and had showed up with late payment dates. |
| Effect of Condition:       | The District is not in compliance with federal regulations that govern the timely payment of payroll taxes to the IRS.  |
| Recommendation:            | We recommend that these payroll tax deposits be timely paid to the IRS by the due date depending on the date of the payroll. We recommend that future payroll tax deposits be monitored by a responsible individual to see that these deposits are timely paid to the IRS.        |
| Date of Initial Occurrence | December 31, 2019   |
| Corrective Action Taken -  | Yes   |

# Schedule of Current Year Audit Findings and Management's Response For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

There were no current year audit findings as of December 31, 2020.

**Certified Public Accountants** 

1620 North Pine Street DeRidder, LA 70634 Tel: (337) 462-3211 Fax: (337) 462-0640 John A. Windham, CPA Charles M. Reed, Jr., CPA

## INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Michael Bealer, CLA Vernon Parish Assessor Leesville, Louisiana

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities and the major fund of Vernon Parish Assessor, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Vernon Parish Assessor's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 17, 2021.

# **Internal Control over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Vernon Parish Assessor's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Vernon Parish Assessor's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Vernon Parish Assessor's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

# **Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Vernon Parish Assessor's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

The Honorable Michael Bealer, CLA Vernon Parish Assessor Leesville, Louisiana Page 2

# Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

formal. Windham, CPA

DeRidder, Louisiana May 17, 2021